
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

AUGUST 18, 2008 

 

 

PRESENT: 

Larry Ballin, Selectman 
Brian Prescott, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
 

ABSENT: 

Mark Kaplan, Selectman 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 

Les Norman, Conservation Commission chair 
Sue Clough, Resident 
John Clough, Resident 
Sara Smith, Resident 
D.J. Lavoie, Resident 
Bob Lavoie, Resident 
Peter Stanley, Zoning Administrator 
Debbie Cross, Intertown Record 
 

The meeting convened at 8 a.m.  Selectmen adjourned the meeting at 8:00 AM to meet with Town 
Counsel.  Meeting recommenced at 8:20 AM with 13 items of regular business.  
 
Minutes – August 4, 2008 

 

Brian Prescott moved to accept. Larry Ballin seconded. No further discussion. Motion unanimously 
approved.   
 
Tax Exempt Properties: Selectmen will review Norm Bernaiche’s recommendations at the next meeting.  
Jessie Levine said there are few changes since last year, but she needs to discuss with him New London 
Hospital’s application. The only new application this year was from the Kidder Ice House, which is 
recommended for approval. 
 
Non-Resident Taxpayers Meeting 

 

The meeting is scheduled for next Monday at 8 a.m., and the following items may be included on the 
agenda: 

• The roundabout. 

• The Town’s proposal to bond a portion of the KCC cost, and how the community center will 
impact seasonal residents, i.e. by enhancing the community, by protecting property values.   

• Crockett’s Corner. 

• Elkins charette. 
 
 



Board of Selectmen   Page 2 of 5 
Meeting Minutes 
August 18, 2008 
 
Proposal from Capital Regional Development Council (CRDC): Jessie Levine and Larry Ballin 
reported on their meeting with Stephen Heavener, CRDC’s executive director, regarding that organization 
preparing a study demonstrating the potential impact the KCC will have on economic development in 
New London, including how it may offset negative impacts resulting from the move of the middle school.  
CRDC’s services will include conducting a business survey, investigating potential funding sources, 
preparing a study on how the KCC will integrate with the Town’s overall economic development goals, 
and an economic justification report.  There is also a possibility of CRDC investing in the project.   
 
The fee for the study will be $5000, and can be taken out of the Planning Board budget.  After brief 
discussion, Selectmen agreed to sign the proposal and go forward with the study. 
 
Later in the meeting, Bob Lavoie asked for further clarification of the proposal.  Jessie Levine explained 
that the purpose of this study is to demonstrate the potential impact that the community center could have 
in New London, but will not go into things like the community center’s operating and maintenance costs.   
 
Crockett’s Corner: Jessie Levine reported that representatives from the Regional Planning Commission, 
State, and New London department heads met last week, at which time the State presented a series of 
proposals that could be implemented as early as next year as part of its (the State’s) repaving of the road 
from Exit 11 to Wilmot.  Larry Ballin said that if they aim for a more grandiose plan, that would be put 
on the State’s ten year plan, and thus, might never happen. 
 
The plan includes reduction of the slip lanes, removal of the truck lanes, narrowing the roads, and adding 
median strips.  The issue of people coming from the direction of Sutton and not stopping at the stop sign 
will be more difficult to address.  The State proposes to narrow Route 114 at that intersection and attempt 
to make it safer.  The detailed plan will be presented at the public meeting in September.  She said that the 
Town would have to be responsible for planting and maintaining any landscaping done on the median 
strips. Selectmen agreed that that cost will have to be looked at.   
 
Elkins Charette: This is scheduled for tomorrow. For that reason and others, Selectmen agreed to cancel 
the Budget Committee’s tour of the Public Works Department scheduled for 2 tomorrow afternoon. 
 
Purchase of Shultz Land on Clark Pond: Conservation Commission Chairman Les Norman said that 
the new appraisal of the 45 acres is for $200,000.  He reported that Conservation Commission members 
met last week to look at the range between the first appraisal of $245,000 and the new one of $200,000.  
Since at a previous meeting, Eric Shultz said he would accept $220,000, Conservation Commission 
members discussed that number, and ultimately voted to go forward with the purchase of this land for 
$220,000.  Larry Ballin said that the way the CIP is written, that can be done at the discretion of the 
Conservation Commission with support of the Board of Selectmen; however, he pointed out that it will be 
difficult to justify to the taxpayers the fact that the Town is paying a premium price for this piece of land. 
In other words, it is paying a 10% penalty for the delay in this process.  Having said that, he agreed they 
should go forward with the purchase at this point. He said that in the future they must look more closely 
at the process, and have a firm appraisal beforehand.  Les Norman said there is agreement in principle that 
in the future they will obtain two appraisals.     
 
Jessie Levine asked when the deed will be ready. Peter Stanley said it should be completed shortly now 
that there is a decision on the price. He will know by Thursday. He has the revised Purchase and Sale 
Agreement ready now with the new numbers, and they can proceed to the closing.  Jessie Levine said that 
Selectmen have not yet seen the draft deed, and Brian Prescott asked about the dock and boat ramp there. 
Peter Stanley said the deed will specify that that is allowed for Eric Shultz during his lifetime only.  
 



Board of Selectmen   Page 3 of 5 
Meeting Minutes 
August 18, 2008 
 
Sue Clough agreed that settling on a mid-point between the two appraisals makes sense. She expressed 
concern however, that in the future when two different appraisals are received, the lower one not always 
take precedent.  Larry Ballin reiterated that they are moving forward now with a mid-point number, but in 
the future will make sure to have more data before getting so far in the process.  He underscored that the 
Board of Selectmen accepts the blame for not being more involved in this, earlier on.   
 
Larry Ballin noted that discrepancies in acreage should be discovered earlier in the process.  Jessie Levine 
said a survey costs between $6000 and $8000, and typically the Town would not want to spend that much 
money before it knows it is going to purchase. Sue Clough asked if money could just be put into the 
budget for such occasions.  Larry Ballin agreed that is a possibility. 
 
Regarding the inaccuracy of the original survey that was used in this case, Jessie Levine said that they did 
use some GPS mapping. Les Norman said the town’s tax mapping does contain many errors. Jessie 
Levine has asked Peter Stanley to speak to Cartographics about whether the digitized maps could be used 
to generate more accurate acreage data.  Larry Ballin said despite that, he feels there is technology 
available that would allow them to get a better idea of a parcel earlier in the process.  D.J. Lavoie said the 
problem seems to be the timing of the survey. She suggested that a survey be done ahead of time, with the 
Town and the seller sharing the cost.  
 
Brian Prescott said he would like the Conservation Commission, when considering a purchase, to take the 
approach that it does not have the money yet.  He expressed concern about buying land just because they 
have the money in reserve. She Clough asked where that philosophy puts the CIP.  Brian Prescott said he 
supports the CIP, but objects to justifying a purchase by saying that it will have no impact on taxes.  Bob 
Lavoie agreed that that statement is misleading; putting money into the CIP does impact taxes at some 
point.   
 
Larry Ballin expressed concern that now they are setting a precedent for purchasing a parcel at a premium 
price.  Peter Stanley said there is a wide array of ways in which land is protected, and the Conservation 
Commission is involved with all of these at various stages.   
 
John Clough suggested that the Land Trust might have some expertise, or models, that could be drawn 
upon, and Sue Clough said the Forest Society also has strict criteria for land purchased for conservation. 
Les Norman said the Conservation Commission uses criteria of its own. Sue Clough agreed, but said it 
may be helpful to look at others.   
 
PSNH: Jessie Levine reported that Kelsie Lee was able to overlay a photo of the type of poles and 
equipment that PSNH is proposing for Main Street over a photo of the Common. She has forwarded this 
to PSNH and asked for their comments on how close to accurate this image is.  PSNH has responded by 
indicating that it would be willing to place the poles with transmitters further up, in front of the College 
instead—in a location just this side of the entrance to the Hogan Center.  Jessie Levine has forwarded that 
message to the College.  Her opinion is that that change would not do much to comply with the Town’s 
wish to protect the visual impact of Main Street, and she also reflected that the College might not be 
enthused about having its newly cleared green space imposed upon.  Larry Ballin said he feels this 
location is at least a little better than the original proposal that called for the poles to be in front of the 
common, but he agreed that the college probably will not be pleased.   
 
Planning Board: Jessie Levine reported that she and Karen Ebel continued to work on putting the 
community survey on-line. Post cards will go out in the mail this week, asking people to take the survey 
on line or to call the office if they prefer a hard copy.  Unfortunately, some people discovered the survey 



Board of Selectmen   Page 4 of 5 
Meeting Minutes 
August 18, 2008 
 
on-line before it was ready to go live, so those people experienced trouble and will have to re-take the 
survey. 
 
CIP Subcommittee: Jessie Levine and Brian Prescott reported that at last week’s meeting the 
subcommittee discussed building funds and fire equipment.  The subcommittee agreed to put all capital 
plans in future dollars, rather than build 3% inflation into each, and add 3% inflation to the total. Larry 
Ballin agreed that that is a good arrangement realistically, but said it means that people will really be out 
8% or 9%. Jessie Levine said the cost of most equipment increased 10% in just a year.  Larry Ballin said 
costs go up and down over the years.   
 
Roundabout: Jessie Levine said over the next few days, the crews will be raising the grates and sewer 
manholes. They are into actual roundabout construction now. County Road is open, and they are about 
finished work on the retaining wall by Huberts and are beginning to put sidewalks in.   
 
She referred to the concern at the last meeting about the rising cost of asphalt., and she reported that the 
State has agreed to include that increase in its contract. That is, it will cover 80% of the increase, leaving 
$6000 for the Town to cover.  At the same time, John Hughes has notified her that he will be placing 
vertical curbs in some of the places where the plan calls for sloping curbs, and that will save $6000 there.   
 
Kearsarge Community Center: Jessie Levine reported that she has met with Selectmen in most of the 
School District towns, and they have been supporting about the community center.  Larry Ballin observed 
that at the School District Facilities Committee meeting, representatives from two of the towns indicated 
that New London should be asking other towns to contribute to the cost as well.  At this meeting, there 
was agreement to stick with the decision not to, though Selectmen understand that there is concern on the 
part of some other towns about their vested ownership in that building.   
 
At 9:10 a.m., Selectmen moved, seconded and unanimously agreed to enter non-public session, in 
accordance with RSA 91-A:3 (c and d). (Ballin-yes. Prescott-yes.) 
 
At 9:20 a.m., Selectmen reentered public session and signed the revised Purchase & Sales agreement for 
the Shultz property.  Prior to the opening of the meeting, Selectmen had signed the following items: 
 
Applications for Building Permits: 

• Extension: Jonathan & Daniela Mellen, 600 Hall Farm Road (Map & Lot 087-009-000) lengthen the 
deck to 16 x 36 – Permit # 07-134 – Approved. 

• Amendment: Domenic & Molly Ferrante, 53 Lighthouse View Road (Map & Lot 126-005-000) add 
4’ x 32’ net across the top of wall – Permit #08-024 – Approved. 

• Brian & Wendy Dumais, 1169 County Road (Map & Lot 117-002-000) 3 bedroom/2 bathroom 
addition (20’ x 40’) – Permit #08-096 – Approved. 

• John & Cherie Estes, 224 Shaker Street (Map & Lot 099-018-000) change interior & exterior walls 
from 2” to 6”& 4” – convert ½ bath to ¾ bath, change windows, build closet – Permit #08-097 – 
Approved. 

• Richard Deluca Trust, 73 Summit Road (Map & Lot 129-013-000) convert garage into living space 
and add breezeway – Permit #08-098 – Approved. 



Board of Selectmen   Page 5 of 5 
Meeting Minutes 
August 18, 2008 
 
Other: 
 

• Disbursement & payroll voucher week of 8/18/08 -   Approved. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:20 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 
Sarah A. Denz 
Recording Secretary 
 


